

Enabler Test Specification for SCOMO

Candidate Version 1.0 – 21 September 2010

Open Mobile Alliance OMA-ETS-SCOMO-V1_0-20100921-C

Use of this document is subject to all of the terms and conditions of the Use Agreement located at http://www.openmobilealliance.org/UseAgreement.html.

Unless this document is clearly designated as an approved specification, this document is a work in process, is not an approved Open Mobile AllianceTM specification, and is subject to revision or removal without notice.

You may use this document or any part of the document for internal or educational purposes only, provided you do not modify, edit or take out of context the information in this document in any manner. Information contained in this document may be used, at your sole risk, for any purposes. You may not use this document in any other manner without the prior written permission of the Open Mobile Alliance. The Open Mobile Alliance authorizes you to copy this document, provided that you retain all copyright and other proprietary notices contained in the original materials on any copies of the materials and that you comply strictly with these terms. This copyright permission does not constitute an endorsement of the products or services. The Open Mobile Alliance assumes no responsibility for errors or omissions in this document.

Each Open Mobile Alliance member has agreed to use reasonable endeavors to inform the Open Mobile Alliance in a timely manner of Essential IPR as it becomes aware that the Essential IPR is related to the prepared or published specification. However, the members do not have an obligation to conduct IPR searches. The declared Essential IPR is publicly available to members and non-members of the Open Mobile Alliance and may be found on the "OMA IPR Declarations" list at http://www.openmobilealliance.org/ipr.html. The Open Mobile Alliance has not conducted an independent IPR review of this document and the information contained herein, and makes no representations or warranties regarding third party IPR, including without limitation patents, copyrights or trade secret rights. This document may contain inventions for which you must obtain licenses from third parties before making, using or selling the inventions. Defined terms above are set forth in the schedule to the Open Mobile Alliance Application Form.

NO REPRESENTATIONS OR WARRANTIES (WHETHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED) ARE MADE BY THE OPEN MOBILE ALLIANCE OR ANY OPEN MOBILE ALLIANCE MEMBER OR ITS AFFILIATES REGARDING ANY OF THE IPR'S REPRESENTED ON THE "OMA IPR DECLARATIONS" LIST, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO THE ACCURACY, COMPLETENESS, VALIDITY OR RELEVANCE OF THE INFORMATION OR WHETHER OR NOT SUCH RIGHTS ARE ESSENTIAL OR NON-ESSENTIAL.

THE OPEN MOBILE ALLIANCE IS NOT LIABLE FOR AND HEREBY DISCLAIMS ANY DIRECT, INDIRECT, PUNITIVE, SPECIAL, INCIDENTAL, CONSEQUENTIAL, OR EXEMPLARY DAMAGES ARISING OUT OF OR IN CONNECTION WITH THE USE OF DOCUMENTS AND THE INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THE DOCUMENTS.

© 2010 Open Mobile Alliance Ltd. All Rights Reserved. Used with the permission of the Open Mobile Alliance Ltd. Under the terms set forth above.

Contents

1.	SCOPE	4
2.	REFERENCES	5
2.1	NORMATIVE REFERENCES	5
2.2		
3.	TERMINOLOGY AND CONVENTIONS	
3.1		
3.2		
3.3		
4.	INTRODUCTION	7
	SCOMO CONFORMANCE TEST CASES	
6.	SCOMO INTEROPERABILITY TEST CASES	9
6.1		9
6.2	DELIVERY AND INSTALL USING LARGE OBJECT (SYNCHRONOUS REPORT)	. 10
6.3	B DELIVERY AND INSTALL USING LARGE OBJECT (ASYNCHRONOUS REPORT)	. 11
6.4	DELIVERY USING ALTERNATE DOWNLOAD (SYNCHRONOUS REPORT)	. 12
6.5		
6.6	6 REMOVE SOFTWARE COMPONENT (SYNCHRONOUS REPORT)	. 14
6.7		
6.8	ACTIVATE SOFTWARE COMPONENT (SYNCHRONOUS REPORT)	. 16
6.9		
6.1		
6.1	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	
6.1		
6.1	,	
6.1	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	
6.1	5 DOWNLOAD DELIVERY PACKAGE (ASYNCHRONOUS REPORT)	. 23
APP	ENDIX A. CHANGE HISTORY (INFORMATIVE)	. 25
A.	1 APPROVED VERSION HISTORY	. 25
	2 Draet/Candidate Vergion 1.0 History	24

Figures

No table of figures entries found.

Tables

No table of figures entries found.

1. Scope

This document describes in detail available test cases for Software Component Management Object 1.0, http://www.openmobilealliance.org/.

The test cases are split in two categories, conformance and interoperability test cases.

The conformance test cases are aimed to verify the adherence to normative requirements described in the technical specifications.

The interoperability test cases are aimed to verify that implementations of the specifications work satisfactory.

If either conformance or interoperability tests do not exists at the creation of the test specification this part should be marked not available.

2. References

2.1 Normative References

[RFC2119] "Key words for use in RFCs to Indicate Requirement Levels", S. Bradner, March 1997,

URL:http://www.ietf.org/rfc/rfc2119.txt

[SCOMOAD] "Software Component Management Object Architecture", Version 1.0, Open Mobile Alliance™,

OMA-AD-SCOMO-V1_0 URL:http//www.openmobilealliance.org/

[SCOMOTS] "Software Component Management Object", Version 1.0, Open Mobile AllianceTM,

OMA-TS-SCOMO-V1_0 URL: http://www.openmobilealliance.org/

2.2 Informative References

[OMADICT] "Dictionary for OMA Specifications", Version 2.7, Open Mobile Alliance™,

OMA-ORG-Dictionary-V2_7, <u>URL:http://www.openmobilealliance.org/</u>

3. Terminology and Conventions

3.1 Conventions

The key words "MUST", "MUST NOT", "REQUIRED", "SHALL", "SHALL NOT", "SHOULD", "SHOULD NOT", "RECOMMENDED", "MAY", and "OPTIONAL" in this document are to be interpreted as described in [RFC2119].

All sections and appendixes, except "Scope", are normative, unless they are explicitly indicated to be informative.

The following numbering scheme is used:

xxx-y.z-con-number where:

xxx Name of enabler, e.g. MMS or Browsing y.z Version of enabler release, e.g. 1.2 or 1.2.1 'con' Indicating this test is a conformance test case

number Leap number for the test case

Or

xxx-y.z-int-number where:

xxx Name of enabler, e.g. MMS or Browsing
 y.z Version of enabler release, e.g. 1.2 or 1.2.1
 'int' Indicating this test is a interoperability test case

number Leap number for the test case

3.2 Definitions

< Node> Path from the root to the node that is configured to the SCTS before the testing is done (e.g.

'./Inventory/Deployed' or './Download'). Test case is driven to this configured interior node. The <Node>

can be different between different Test Cases

Test Object The implementation under test is referred to as the Test Object. In this document, the client

3.3 Abbreviations

DDF Device Description Framework

DL Download

DLOTA Download Over-The-Air
 DM Device Management
 MO Management Object
 OMA Open Mobile Alliance

SCOMO Software Component Management Object

SCR Static Conformance Requirement

4. Introduction

The purpose of this document is to provide test cases for SCOMO Enabler Release 1.0 [SCOMOTS].

The following items are needed at a high level to adequately execute the SCOMO IOP test cases.

- A Device Management (DM) client in the device that is configured to interact with a DM server
- A DM server capable of accessing and setting software component management objects in a mobile device, if necessary
- A download mechanism, such as OMA-DM or DLOTA, for supporting download of software components

Client vendor must have sample software packages available for the server to use.

The implementation of some features is optional for the Clients and/or the Servers in the SCOMO Enabler. The tests associated with these optional features are marked as "(Includes Optional Features)" in the test specification.

5. SCOMO Conformance Test Cases

There are no conformance cases identified for the Client and Server at this time. Mandatory SCR items will be covered in the interoperability test cases

6. SCOMO Interoperability Test Cases

6.1 Verification of Tree Structure

Test Case Id	SCOMO-1.0-int-001
Test Object	SCOMO Client and SCOMO Server
Test Case Description	The purpose of this test is to verify that the SCOMO Client supports the required SCOMO elements and the required nodes in the DM tree
Specification Reference	[SCOMOTS] section 7 (and sub-sections)
SCR Reference	SCOMO-T-001-M
	SCOMO-T-002-M
	SCOMO-T-003-O
	SCOMO-T-004-M
ETR Reference	DDF
	DDF-MOI
	DDF-MUST
	DDF-Cond
	DDF-DFType
	DDF-Format
	DDF-Min-Occ
	DDF-Max-Occ
Tool	None
Test code	None
Preconditions	The DM Client MUST support SCOMO
	The SCOMO Client MUST be configured to work with a SCOMO Server
	The DM Server has proper ACL rights to access all relevant nodes of the DM Tree
Test Procedure	Perform an ADD to create the/x* Node in the Management Tree, if one does not exist
	2. Perform a GET on node/x*, to verify that/x* was added and to determine whether sub-nodes are added automatically

Pass-Criteria	1. The SCOMO Client created a SCOMO/x* when requested by the Server. ADD command returns a response of 200.
	2. Verify that the GET command on node/x* returns a response of 200
	3. Verify the metatype is the Management Object identifier: "urn:oma:mo:oma-scomo:1.0"
	4. Verify the GET performed on/x* in step (2) indicates the presence of all required nodes and all optional nodes listed as supported in the Client ICS but no other nodes.

6.2 Delivery and install using Large Object (Synchronous Report)

Test Case Id	SCOMO-1.0-int-002
Test Object	SCOMO Client and SCOMO Server
Test Case Description	The purpose is to test client and server interoperability when delivering and installing a Delivery Package using Large Object, using synchronous reporting
Specification Reference	[SCOMO-TS] Chapter 5 (Software Component Management Framework)
SCR Reference	SCOMO-C-001-M (Support for Download)
	SCOMO-C-006-O (Support for Add of <x>/Inventory/Delivered/<x>/Data</x></x>
	SCOMO-C-024-O (Support synchronous result reporting)
	SCOMO-C-028-O (Support for OMA-DM Download using Data node)
	SCOMO-S-001-M (Support for the SCOMO)
ETR Reference	Delivery
	Installation
Tool	None
Test code	None
Preconditions	 An established DM session between DM Client and DM Server The SCOMO Client MUST support downloading of a Package based on Large Object (from DM Server)
	• In this test case " <x>" denotes the string that is used in the actual MO</x>
	 DM Client supports synchronous operation for the Install Delivery Package primitive
	 The DM Server has proper ACL rights to access all relevant nodes of the DM Tree
Test Procedure	 Perform an Add command to add the /Inventory/Delivered/<x> node, if it does not exist</x>
	 Perform Add commands to add child nodes of the /Download/<x> node (unless they already exist or Device created them as a result of step 1 above)</x>
	3. Perform a Replace command on node /Inventory/Delivered/ <x>/Data (uses Large Object feature)</x>
	4. Perform an Exec on node /Inventory/Delivered/ <x>/Operations/Install</x>

Pass-Criteria	1. The Add commands (steps 1, 2):
	 The SCOMO Client creates an /Inventory/Delivered/<x> branch including child nodes</x>
	b. Returns response with result code 200 (OK)
	2. The synchronous response for the Exec command (step 4):
	a. MUST have status code indicating success

6.3 Delivery and install using Large Object (Asynchronous Report)

Test Case Id	SCOMO-1.0-int-003
Test Object	SCOMO Client and SCOMO Server
Test Case Description	The purpose is to test client and server interoperability when delivering and installing a Delivery Package using Large Object and asynchronous reporting
Specification Reference	[SCOMO-TS] Chapter 5 (Software Component Management Framework)
SCR Reference	SCOMO-C-001-M (Support for Download)
	SCOMO-C-006-O (Support for Add of <x>/Inventory/Delivered/<x>/Data</x></x>
	SCOMO-C-025-O (Support asynchronous result reporting)
	SCOMO-C-028-O (Support for OMA-DM Download using Data node)
	SCOMO-S-001-M (Support for the SCOMO)
ETR Reference	Delivery
	Installation
Tool	None
Test code	None
Preconditions	 An established DM session between DM Client and DM Server The SCOMO Client MUST support downloading of a Package based on Large Object (from DM Server)
	• In this test case " <x>" denotes the string that is used in the actual MO</x>
	DM Client supports asynchronous operation for the Install Delivery Package primitive
	The DM Server has proper ACL rights to access all relevant nodes of the DM Tree
Test Procedure	Perform an Add command to add the /Inventory/Delivered/ <x> node, if it does not exist</x>
	 Perform Add commands to add child nodes of the /Download/<x> node (unless they already exist or Device created them as a result of step 1 above)</x>
	3. Perform a Replace command on node /Inventory/Delivered/ <x>/Data (uses Large Object feature)</x>
	4. Perform an Exec on node /Inventory/Delivered/ <x>/Operations/Install</x>

Pass-Criteria	1. The Add commands (steps 1, 2):
	 The SCOMO Client creates an /Inventory/Delivered/<x> branch including child nodes</x>
	b. Returns response with result code 200 (OK)
	 The Replace command on node /Inventory/Delivered/<x>/Data (step 3):</x>
	a. Returns response with result code 200 (OK)
	b. The Data leaf containing data of the Delivery Package is replaced

6.4 Delivery using Alternate Download (Synchronous Report)

Test Case Id	SCOMO-1.0-int-004
Test Object	SCOMO Client and SCOMO Server
Test Case Description	The purpose is to test client and server interoperability when delivering a Delivery Package using Alternate Download
Specification Reference	[SCOMO-TS] Chapter 5 (Software Component Management Framework)
SCR Reference	SCOMO-C-002-O (Support for Alternate Download (requires SCOMO-C-026-O AND SCOMO-C-027-O)) SCOMO-C-024-O (Support synchronous result reporting) SCOMO-S-001-M (Support for the SCOMO)
	SCOMO-DMS-001-M (Provide metadata with the Deployment Component)
ETR Reference	Alternate-Delivery
	Report
Tool	None
Test code	None
Preconditions	An established DM session between DM Client and DM Server
	 The SCOMO Client MUST support downloading of a Package based on Alternate Download Mechanism (e.g. DLOTA)
	• In this test case " <x>" denotes the string that is used in the actual MO</x>
	 DM Client supports synchronous reporting for the Download Delivery Package primitive
	 The DM Server has proper ACL rights to access all relevant nodes of the DM Tree
Test Procedure	 Perform an Add command to add the /Download/<x> node, if it doesn't exist.</x>
	 Perform Add commands to add child nodes of the /Download/<x> node (unless they already exist or Device created them as a result of step 1 above)</x>
	3. Perform an Exec on node /Download/ <x>/Operations/ Download</x>

Pass-Criteria	1. The Add commands (steps 1, 2):
	1.1 The SCOMO Client creates a /Download/ <x> branch including child nodes</x>
	1.2 Returns response with result code 200 (OK).
	2. The synchronous response for the Exec command (step 3):
	2.1 MUST have status code indicating success

6.5 Delivery using Alternate Download (Asynchronous Report)

Test Case Id	SCOMO-1.0-int-005
Test Object	SCOMO Client and SCOMO Server
Test Case Description	The purpose is to test client and server interoperability when delivering a Delivery Package using Alternate Download
Specification Reference	[SCOMO-TS] Chapter 5 (Software Component Management Framework)
SCR Reference	SCOMO-C-002-O (Support for Alternate Download (requires SCOMO-C-026-O AND SCOMO-C-027-O))
	SCOMO-C-025-O (Support asynchronous result reporting)
	SCOMO-S-001-M (Support for the SCOMO)
	SCOMO-DMS-001-M (Provide metadata with the Deployment Component)
ETR Reference	Alternate-Delivery
	Report
Tool	None
Test code	None
Preconditions	An established DM session between DM Client and DM Server
	The SCOMO Client MUST support downloading of a Package based on Alternate Download Mechanism (e.g. DLOTA)
	• In this test case " <x>" denotes the string that is used in the actual MO</x>
	DM Client supports asynchronous operation for the Download Delivery Package primitive
	The DM Server has proper ACL rights to access all relevant nodes of the DM Tree
Test Procedure	Perform an Add command to add the /Download/ <x> node, if it doesn't exist.</x>
Test Procedure	

Pass-Criteria	1. The Add commands (steps 1, 2):
	1.1 The SCOMO Client creates a /Download/ <x> branch including child nodes</x>
	1.2 Returns response with result code 200 (OK).
	2. The response for the Exec command (step 3):
	2.1 MUST have status code 202 (Accepted for Processing)
	3. The response for Generic Alert after Exec command (step 3):
	3.1 Generic Alert equals 1226
	3.2 Has result code indicating success
	3.3 <source/> <locuri> gets value of the Primitive node on which the Exec command was invoked.</locuri>
	3.4 <target><locuri> gets the newly created dynamic node value under the Delivered tree for the Delivered Component</locuri></target>

6.6 Remove Software Component (Synchronous Report)

Test Case Id	SCOMO-1.0-int-006
Test Object	SCOMO Client and SCOMO Server
Test Case Description	The purpose is to test client and server interoperability when removing an existing software component with synchronous reporting
Specification Reference	[SCOMO-TS] Chapter 5 (Software Component Management Framework)
Tool	None
Test code	None
SCR Reference	SCOMO-C-010-M (Support for Removed State)
	SCOMO-C-013-M (Support Remove Primitive)
	SCOMO-C-024-O (Support synchronous result reporting)
	SCOMO-S-001-M (Support for the SCOMO)
ETR Reference	Removal
	Inventory
	Report
Preconditions	An established DM session between DM Client and DM Server
	• In this test case " <x>" denotes the string that is used in the actual MO, for an existing pre-deployed Deployment c</x>
	 The existing Deployment Component is reflected in the Inventory (under ./Inventory/Deployed/<x> subtree)</x>
	• The State of the Deployment Component is 'Active' or 'Inactive'
	• The node ./Inventory/Deployed/ <x>/Operations/Remove exists</x>
	 The DM Client support synchronous operation for the Remove Deployment Component operation
	 The DM Server has proper ACL rights to access all relevant nodes of the DM Tree

Test Procedure	Perform a Get on node /Inventory/Deployed/ <x>/State</x>
	2. Perform an Exec on node /Inventory/Deployed/ <x>/Operations/Remove</x>
Pass-Criteria	1. The response from the Get command in step 1 indicates the value is 'Active' or 'Inactive'
	2. The responses for the Exec command in step 2:
	a. Has result code indicating success.

6.7 Remove Software Component (Asynchronous Report)

Test Case Id	SCOMO-1.0-int-007
Test Object	SCOMO Client and SCOMO Server
Test Case Description	The purpose is to test client and server interoperability when removing an existing software component with asynchronous reporting
Specification Reference	[SCOMO-TS] Chapter 5 (Software Component Management Framework)
Tool	None
Test code	None
SCR Reference	SCOMO-C-010-M (Support for Removed State)
	SCOMO-C-013-M (Support Remove Primitive)
	SCOMO-C-025-O (Support asynchronous result reporting)
	SCOMO-S-001-M (Support for the SCOMO)
ETR Reference	Removal
	Inventory
	Report
Preconditions	 An established DM session between DM Client and DM Server
	• In this test case " <x>" denotes the string that is used in the actual MO, for an existing pre-deployed Deployment Component</x>
	 The existing Deployment Component is reflected in the Inventory (under ./Inventory/Deployed/<x> subtree)</x>
	• The State of the Deployment Component is 'Active' or 'Inactive'
	• The node ./Inventory/Deployed/ <x>/Operations/Remove exists</x>
	 The DM Client support asynchronous operation for the Remove Deployment Component operation
	 The DM Server has proper ACL rights to access all relevant nodes of the DM Tree
Test Procedure	1. Perform a Get on node /Inventory/Deployed/ <x>/State</x>
	 Perform an Exec on node /Inventory/Deployed/<x>/Operations/Remove</x>
	3. Wait for the Generic Alert matching the Exec command
Pass-Criteria	1. The response from the Get command in step 1 indicates the value is 'Active' or 'Inactive'
	2. The response for the Exec command in step 2 is 202 (Accepted For Processing)
	3. The responses for the Generic Alert in step 3:
	 Has result code indicating success.
	b. Source/LocURI contains the URI of the Remove node

6.8 Activate Software Component (Synchronous Report)

Test Case Id	SCOMO-1.0-int-008
Test Object	SCOMO Client and SCOMO Server

Test Case Description	The purpose is to test client and server interoperability when activating an existing software component with synchronous reporting
Specification Reference	[SCOMO-TS] Chapter 5 (Software Component Management Framework)
Tool	None
Test code	None
SCR Reference	SCOMO-C-008-O (Support Inactive State)
	SCOMO-C-009-M (Support Active State)
	SCOMO-C-011-O (Support Activate Primitive)
	SCOMO-C-024-O (Support synchronous result reporting)
	SCOMO-S-001-M (Support for the SCOMO)
ETR Reference	Activation
	Inventory
	Report
Preconditions	An established DM session between DM Client and DM Server
	• In this test case " <x>" denotes the string that is used in the actual MO, for an existing pre-deployed Deployment Component</x>
	 The existing Deployment Component is reflected in the Inventory (under ./Inventory/Deployed/<x> subtree)</x>
	The State of the Deployment Component is 'Inactive'
	• The node ./Inventory/Deployed/ <x>/Operations/Activate exists</x>
	The DM Client support synchronous operation for the Activate Deployment Component operation
	The DM Server has proper ACL rights to access all relevant nodes of the DM Tree
Test Procedure	1. Perform a Get on node /Inventory/Deployed/ <x>/State</x>
	2. Perform an Exec on node /Inventory/Deployed/ <x>/Operations/Activate</x>
Pass-Criteria	1. The response from the Get command in step 1 indicates the value is 'Inactive'
	2. The responses for the Exec command in step 2:
	a. Has result code indicating success.
	b. Source/LocURI contains the URI of the Activate node
	c. Target/LocURI contains the URI of the Deployment Component State (./Inventory/Deployed/ <x>/State)</x>

6.9 Activate Software Component (Asynchronous Report)

Test Case Id	SCOMO-1.0-int-009
Test Object	SCOMO Client and SCOMO Server
Test Case Description	The purpose is to test client and server interoperability when activating an existing software component with asynchronous reporting
Specification Reference	[SCOMO-TS] Chapter 5 (Software Component Management Framework)
Tool	None
Test code	None
SCR Reference	SCOMO-C-008-O (Support Inactive State)
	SCOMO-C-009-M (Support Active State)
	SCOMO-C-011-O (Support Activate Primitive)
	SCOMO-C-025-O (Support asynchronous result reporting)
	SCOMO-S-001-M (Support for the SCOMO)
ETR Reference	Activation
	Inventory
	Report
Preconditions	An established DM session between DM Client and DM Server
	• In this test case " <x>" denotes the string that is used in the actual MO, for an existing pre-deployed Deployment Component</x>
	 The existing Deployment Component is reflected in the Inventory (under ./Inventory/Deployed/<x> subtree)</x>
	The State of the Deployment Component is 'Inactive'
	• The node ./Inventory/Deployed/ <x>/Operations/Activate exists</x>
	The DM Client support asynchronous operation for the Activate Deployment Component operation
	The DM Server has proper ACL rights to access all relevant nodes of the DM Tree
Test Procedure	1. Perform a Get on node /Inventory/Deployed/ <x>/State</x>
	2. Perform an Exec on node /Inventory/Deployed/ <x>/Operations/Activate</x>
	3. Wait for the Generic Alert matching the Exec command
Pass-Criteria	The response from the Get command in step 1 indicates the value is 'Inactive'
	2. The response for the Exec command in step 2 is 202 (Accepted For Processing)
	3. The responses for the Generic Alert in step 3:
	a. Has result code indicating success.
	b. Source/LocURI contains the URI of the Activate node
	c. Target/LocURI contains the URI of the Deployment Component State (./Inventory/Deployed/X/State)

6.10 Deactivate Software Component (Synchronous Report)

Test Case Id	SCOMO-1.0-int-010
Test Object	SCOMO Client and SCOMO Server
Test Case Description	The purpose is to test client and server interoperability when deactivating an existing software component with synchronous reporting
Specification Reference	[SCOMO-TS] Chapter 5 (Software Component Management Framework)
Tool	None
Test code	None
SCR Reference	SCOMO-C-008-O (Support Inactive State)
	SCOMO-C-009-M (Support Active State)
	SCOMO-C-012-O (Support Deactivate Primitive)
	SCOMO-C-024-O (Support synchronous result reporting)
	SCOMO-S-001-M (Support for the SCOMO)
ETR Reference	Deactivation
	Inventory
	Report
Preconditions	An established DM session between DM Client and DM Server
	• In this test case " <x>" denotes the string that is used in the actual MO, for an existing pre-deployed Deployment Component</x>
	 The existing Deployment Component is reflected in the Inventory (under ./Inventory/Deployed/<x> subtree)</x>
	The State of the Deployment Component is 'Active'
	• The node ./Inventory/Deployed/ <x>/Operations/Deactivate exists</x>
	The DM Client support synchronous operation for the Deactivate Deployment Component operation
	The DM Server has proper ACL rights to access all relevant nodes of the DM Tree
Test Procedure	Perform a Get on node /Inventory/Deployed/ <x>/State</x>
	Perform an Exec on node /Inventory/Deployed/ <x>/Operations/Deactivate</x>
Pass-Criteria	1. The response from the Get command in step 1 indicates the value is 'Active'
	2. The responses for the Exec command in step 2:
	a. Has result code indicating success.
	b. Source/LocURI contains the URI of the Deactivate node
	c. Target/LocURI contains the URI of the Deployment Component State (./Inventory/Deployed/X/State)

6.11 Deactivate Software Component (Asynchronous Report)

Test Case Id	SCOMO-1.0-int-011
Test Object	SCOMO Client and SCOMO Server
Test Case Description	The purpose is to test client and server interoperability when deactivating an existing software component with asynchronous reporting
Specification Reference	[SCOMO-TS] Chapter 5 (Software Component Management Framework)
Tool	None
Test code	None
SCR Reference	SCOMO-C-008-O (Support Inactive State)
	SCOMO-C-009-M (Support Active State)
	SCOMO-C-012-O (Support Deactivate Primitive)
	SCOMO-C-025-O (Support asynchronous result reporting)
	SCOMO-S-001-M (Support for the SCOMO)
ETR Reference	Deactivation
	Inventory
	Report
Preconditions	An established DM session between DM Client and DM Server
	• In this test case " <x>" denotes the string that is used in the actual MO, for an existing pre-deployed Deployment Component</x>
	 The existing Deployment Component is reflected in the Inventory (under ./Inventory/Deployed/<x> subtree)</x>
	The State of the Deployment Component is 'Active'
	• The node ./Inventory/Deployed/ <x>/Operations/Deactivate exists</x>
	The DM Client support asynchronous operation for the Deactivate Deployment Component operation
	The DM Server has proper ACL rights to access all relevant nodes of the DM Tree
Test Procedure	1. Perform a Get on node /Inventory/Deployed/ <x>/State</x>
	2. Perform an Exec on node
	/Inventory/Deployed/ <x>/Operations/Deactivate</x>
	Wait for the Generic Alert matching the Exec command
Pass-Criteria	1. The response from the Get command in step 1 indicates the value is 'Active'
	2. The response for the Exec command in step 2 is 202 (Accepted For Processing)
	3. The responses for the Generic Alert in step 3:
	a. Has result code indicating success.
	b. Source/LocURI contains the URI of the Deactivate node
	c. Target/LocURI contains the URI of the Deployment Component State (./Inventory/Deployed/X/State)

6.12 Remove Delivery Package (Synchronous Report)

Test Case Id	SCOMO-1.0-int-012
Test Object	SCOMO Client and SCOMO Server
Test Case Description	The purpose is to test client and server interoperability when removing a delivered delivery package using synchronous reporting
Specification Reference	[SCOMO-TS] Chapter 5 (Software Component Management Framework)
Tool	None
Test code	None
SCR Reference	SCOMO-C-015-M (Support Delivered State for Delivery Package)
	SCOMO-C-017-M (Support Removed State for Delivery Package)
	SCOMO-C-023-M (Support Remove Primitive for Delivery Package)
	SCOMO-S-001-M (Support for the SCOMO)
ETR Reference	Removal
	Inventory
	Report
Preconditions	An established DM session between DM Client and DM Server
	• In this test case " <x>" denotes the string that is used in the actual MO, for an existing pre-delivered Delivery Package</x>
	The existing Delivery Package is reflected in the Inventory (under ./Inventory/Delivered/ <x> subtree)</x>
	The DM Client supports synchronous reporting for the Remove Primitive
	The DM Server has proper ACL rights to access all relevant nodes of the DM Tree
Test Procedure	1. Perform a Get on node /Inventory/Delivered/ <x>/State</x>
	2. Perform an Exec on node /Delivered/ <x>/Operations/Remove</x>
Pass-Criteria	1. The response from the Get command in step 1:
	a. Has result code 200 (OK).
	b. The value for the State node is 'Delivered' or 'Installed'
	2. The response for the Exec command (step 2):
	a. MUST have result code indicating success

6.13 Remove Delivery Package (Asynchronous Report)

Test Case Id	SCOMO-1.0-int-013
Test Object	SCOMO Client and SCOMO Server
Test Case Description	The purpose is to test client and server interoperability when removing a delivered delivery package using asynchronous reporting

Specification Reference	[SCOMO-TS] Chapter 5 (Software Component Management Framework)
Tool	None
Test code	None
SCR Reference	SCOMO-C-015-M (Support Delivered State for Delivery Package)
	SCOMO-C-017-M (Support Removed State for Delivery Package)
	SCOMO-C-023-M (Support Remove Primitive for Delivery Package)
	SCOMO-S-001-M (Support for the SCOMO)
ETR Reference	Removal
	Inventory
	Report
Preconditions	An established DM session between DM Client and DM Server
	• In this test case " <x>" denotes the string that is used in the actual MO, for an existing pre-delivered Delivery Package</x>
	 The existing Delivery Package is reflected in the Inventory (under ./Inventory/Delivered/<x> subtree)</x>
	The DM Client supports asynchronous reporting for the Remove Primitive
	The DM Server has proper ACL rights to access all relevant nodes of the DM Tree
Test Procedure	Perform a Get on node /Inventory/Delivered/ <x>/State</x>
	2. Perform an Exec on node /Delivered/ <x>/Operations/Remove</x>
Pass-Criteria	The response from the Get command in step 1:
	a. Has result code 200 (OK).
	b. The value for the State node is 'Delivered' or 'Installed'
	2. The response for the Exec command (step 2):
	a. MUST have result code indicating success

6.14 Download Delivery Package (Synchronous Report)

Test Case Id	SCOMO-1.0-int-014
Test Object	SCOMO Client and SCOMO Server
Test Case Description	The purpose is to test client and server interoperability when downloading a Delivery Package, using synchronous reporting
Specification Reference	[SCOMO-TS] Chapter 5 (Software Component Management Framework)
SCR Reference	SCOMO-C-001-M (Support for Download)
	SCOMO-C-006-O (Support for Add of <x>/Inventory/Delivered/<x>/Data)</x></x>
	SCOMO-C-024-O (Support synchronous result reporting)
	SCOMO-C-028-O (Support for OMA-DM Download using Data node)
	SCOMO-S-001-M (Support for the SCOMO)
ETR Reference	Delivery
Tool	None

Test code	None
Preconditions	 An established DM session between DM Client and DM Server The SCOMO Client MUST support downloading of a Delivery Package (from DM Server) In this test case "<x>" denotes the string that is used in the actual MO</x> DM Client supports synchronous operation for the Install Delivery
	Package primitive • The DM Server has proper ACL rights to access all relevant nodes of the DM Tree
Test Procedure	Perform an Add command to add the /Inventory/Delivered/ <x> node, if it does not exist</x>
	 Perform Add commands to add child nodes of the /Download/<x> node (unless they already exist or Device created them as a result of step 1 above)</x>
Pass-Criteria	1. The Add commands (steps 1, 2):
	 The SCOMO Client creates an /Inventory/Delivered/<x> branch including child nodes</x>
	b. Returns response with result code 200 (OK)
	2. The Replace command on node /Inventory/Delivered/ <x>/:</x>
	a. Returns response with result code 200 (OK)
	b. The Data leaf containing data of the Delivery Package is replaced

6.15 Download Delivery Package (Asynchronous Report)

Test Case Id	SCOMO-1.0-int-015		
Test Object	SCOMO Client and SCOMO Server		
Test Case Description	The purpose is to test client and server interoperability when downloading a Delivery Package using asynchronous reporting		
Specification Reference	[SCOMO-TS] Chapter 5 (Software Component Management Framework)		
SCR Reference	SCOMO-C-001-M (Support for Download)		
	SCOMO-C-006-O (Support for Add of <x>/Inventory/Delivered/<x>/Data)</x></x>		
	SCOMO-C-024-O (Support asynchronous result reporting)		
	SCOMO-C-028-O (Support for OMA-DM Download using Data node)		
	SCOMO-S-001-M (Support for the SCOMO)		
ETR Reference	Delivery		
Tool	None		
Test code	None		

Preconditions	 An established DM session between DM Client and DM Server The SCOMO Client MUST support downloading of a Delivery Package 				
	(from DM Server)				
	• In this test case " <x>" denotes the string that is used in the actual MO</x>				
	DM Client supports asynchronous operation for the Install Delivery Package primitive				
	 The DM Server has proper ACL rights to access all relevant nodes of the DM Tree 				
Test Procedure	 Perform an Add command to add the /Inventory/Delivered/<x> node, if it does not exist</x> 				
	2. Perform Add commands to add child nodes of the /Download/ <x> node (unless they already exist or Device created them as a result of step 1 above)</x>				
	3. Perform a Replace command on node /Inventory/Delivered/ <x>/Data (uses Large Object feature)</x>				
Pass-Criteria	1. The Add commands (steps 1, 2):				
	 The SCOMO Client creates an /Inventory/Delivered/<x> branch including child nodes</x> 				
	b. Returns response with result code 200 (OK)				
	2. The Replace command on node /Inventory/Delivered/ <x>/:</x>				
	a. Returns response with result code 200 (OK)				
	b. The Data leaf containing data of the Delivery Package is replaced				

Appendix A. Change History

(Informative)

A.1 Approved Version History

Reference	Date	Description
n/a	n/a	No prior version -or- No previous version within OMA

A.2 Draft/Candidate Version 1.0 History

Document Identifier	Date	Sections	Description
Draft Versions	11 Nov 2008	All	Initial revision, based on template from 2008 (Nov. 4)
OMA-ETS-SCOMO-V1_0	06 Jan 2009	6	CR incorporated:
			OMA-IOP-MEC-2008-0220
			OMA-IOP-MEC-2008-0221
			OMA-IOP-MEC-2008-0222
	15 Jan 2009	5	CR incorporated:
			OMA-IOP-MEC-2008-0246
	02 Jun 2009	All	OMA-IOP-MEC-2009-0101
	08 Jun 2009	All	Made public after IOP WG agreement
Candidate Versions	26 Jun 2009	n/a	TP approved during TP#25 Boston
OMA-ETS-SCOMO-V1_0			
Draft Versions	10 Feb 2010	6	CR incorporated:
OMA-ETS-SCOMO-V1_0			OMA-IOP-MEC-2009-0160
			OMA-IOP-MEC-2009-0162R03
			OMA-IOP-MEC-2010-0010R01
	15 Feb 2010	6	CR incorporated: -
			OMA-IOP-MEC-2010-0011
Candidate Versions	09 Mar 2010	n/a	Status changed to Candiadate by TP
OMA-ETS-SCOMO-V1_0			TP Ref# OMA-TP-2010-0093-
			INP_SCOMO_10_ETS_for_candidate_re_approval
Draft Versions	08 Mar 2010	6	CR incorporated: -
OMA-ETS-SCOMO-V1_0			OMA-IOP-MEC-2010-0018R01
			OMA-IOP-MEC-2010-0012R04
Candidate Versions	22 Mar 2010	n/a	Status changed to Candidate by TP
OMA-ETS-SCOMO-V1_0			TP Ref# OMA-TP-2010-0133-INP_SCOMO_10_ETS_for_notification
Draft Versions	07 Jul 2010	6.5	Cr incorporated: -
			OMA-IOP-MEC-2010-0051
Candidate Versions	21 Sep 2010	n/a	Status changed to Candidate by TP
OMA-ETS-SCOMO-V1_0			TP Ref# OMA-TP-2010-0421-
			INP_SCOMO_10_ETS_for_notification.zip